
 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 1 of 3 

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY 

The Sunset City  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

A. Call to Order – Mayor 

a. Pledge of Allegiance 

b. Roll Call and Ascertain Quorum 

c. Invocation         

 

Any prayer/invocation that may be offered before the start of regular Council business shall be 

the voluntary offering of a private citizen, for the benefit of the Council and the citizens present. 

The views or beliefs expressed by the prayer/invocation speaker have not been previously 

reviewed or approved by the Council, and the Council does not endorse the religious beliefs or 

views of this, or any other speaker. A list of volunteers is maintained by the Town Clerk’s Office 

and interested persons should contact the Town Clerk’s Office for further information. 

 

B. Call to the Public – Mayor 

A.R.S. 38-431.01 states the Public Body may make an open call to the public during a public 

meeting, subject to reasonable time, place and manner restrictions, to allow individuals to 

address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the Public Body.  At the conclusion 

of an open call to the public, individual members of the Public Body may respond to criticism 

made by those who have addressed the Public Body, may ask staff to review a matter or may 

ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. However, members of the Public Body shall not 

discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters 

are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 

C. Consent Agenda - Mayor 

 

All items listed in the Consent Agenda are considered routine matters and will be enacted by 

one motion of the Council. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Member 

of the Town Council requests that an item or items be removed for discussion. Council Members 

may ask questions without removal of the item from the Consent Agenda. Items removed from 

the Consent Agenda are considered in their normal sequence as listed on the agenda, unless 

called out of sequence.  

 

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN COUNCIL  

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

Thursday, July 11, 2024, at 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

500 N. GONZALES BLVD.  

HUACHUCA CITY, AZ 85616 

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 2 of 3 

C.1 Consider approval of the Minutes of the Regular Council meeting and Public Hearing 

held on June 27, 2024. 

C.2 Consider approval of the Payment Approval Report. 

       

D. Unfinished Business before the Council – Mayor 

 

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

Mayor at any time. 

 

E.   New Business Before Council - Mayor 

 

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen who wishes may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

Mayor at any time.  

 

E.1 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: Approval of a contract with Perry 

Management Corporation to provide solid waste services to Ft. Huachuca Army Base, under the 

Town’s Intergovernmental Support Agreement with the Base.  

 

E.2 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: After Action Review of the Town’s annual 4th 

of July event. 

 

E.3 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 - A RESOLUTION OF 

THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 

AGREEMENT WITH THE ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS TO PARTICIPATE IN AN INMATE 

LABOR PROGRAM. 

  

F. Reports of Current Events by Council 

 

G.  Adjournment 

 

Posted at 5:00 PM on July __, 2024, at the following locations: 
Town Hall Bulletin Board 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd.  

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Town Hall Lobby 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616  

Town Website 

https://huachucacityaz.gov  

Huachuca City U.S. Post 

Office 

690 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Huachuca City Library  

506 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

Huachuca City Police 

Department 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd. 

Huachuca City, AZ 85616 

 
Ms. Brandye Thorpe 

Town Clerk 

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ
https://huachucacityaz.gov/


 

500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 3 of 3 

Note:  This meeting is open to the public.  All interested people are welcome to attend. A copy of agenda 

background material provided to the Councilmembers, with the exception of confidential material 

relating to possible executive sessions, is available for public inspection at the Town Clerk’s Office, 500 N. 

Gonzales Blvd., Huachuca City, AZ 85616, Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or online at 

www.huachucacityaz.gov 

 

Individuals with disabilities who need a reasonable accommodation to attend or communicate at a town 

meeting, or who require this information in alternate format, may contact the Town at 456-1354 (TTY 456-

1353) to make their needs known.  Requests should be made as early as possible so there is sufficient time 

to respond. 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ
http://www.huachucacityaz.gov/


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 1 of 2 

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY 

The Sunset City  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THE COUNCIL WILL CONVENE FOR THE PURPOSE OF HEARING COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

CONCERNING THE TOWN’S PROPOSED ALTERNATIVE EXPENDITURE LIMITATION  “HOME RULE 

OPTION.” 

 

 

A. Call to Order – Mayor 

a. Roll Call and Ascertain Quorum  

Roll Call. 

Present: Johann Wallace, Danielle Cardella, Cynthia Butterworth, Jeffrey Ferro, Christy 

Hirshberg, Debra Trate, Town Manager Suzanne Harvey (Not voting), Town Clerk Brandye 

Thorpe (not voting), Town Attorney Thomas Benavidez (Not voting). 

Absent:  

      

 

B.  Public Hearing  – Mayor Wallace, 

 

1. Members of the public are invited to address the Council concerning the Town’s 

proposed alternative expenditure limitation, “Home Rule Option” which will be on the 

general election ballot November 5, 2024.  

 

Motion: Open this hearing to the public, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by 

Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Mayor Wallace gives a quick rundown on Home Rule and its benefit to the Town. He explains 

that services will have to be cut if it does not pass because the state imposed limit would not 

allow for those services to be continued.  

No members of the public comment. 

 

   

G.  Adjournment 

 

MEETING MINUTES OF THE  

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN COUNCIL  

Public Hearing 

June 13, 2024 AT 5:30 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

500 N. GONZALES BLVD.  

HUACHUCA CITY, AZ 85616 

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 2 of 2 

Motion: To Adjourn, Action: Close the public hearing and Adjourn, Moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Approved by Mayor Johann R. Wallace on July 11th, 2024. 

 

        ____________________________________ 

        Mr. Johann R. Wallace 

Mayor 

   

 

 

Attest: _________________________________________ 

 Ms. Brandye Thorpe, 

 Town Clerk 

 

 

 

Seal: 

 

 

 

 

Certification 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Minutes of the Meeting for 

the Huachuca City Town Council held on June 27, 2024. I further certify that the meeting was 

duly called and a quorum was present. 

 

 

 

        ____________________________________ 

        Ms. Brandye Thorpe, 

        Town Clerk 

  

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 1 of 6 

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY 

The Sunset City  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A. Call to Order – Mayor 

a. Pledge of Allegiance 

b. Roll Call and Ascertain Quorum 

B. Roll Call. 

Roll Call. 

Present: Johann Wallace, Danielle Cardella, Cynthia Butterworth, Jeffrey Ferro, Christy 

Hirshberg, Debra Trate, Town Manager Suzanne Harvey (Not voting), Town Clerk Brandye 

Thorpe (not voting), Town Attorney Thomas Benavidez (Not voting). 

Absent:  

 

a. Invocation         

 

Any prayer/invocation that may be offered before the start of regular Council business shall 

be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, for the benefit of the Council and the citizens 

present. The views or beliefs expressed by the prayer/invocation speaker have not been 

previously reviewed or approved by the Council, and the Council does not endorse the 

religious beliefs or views of this, or any other speaker. A list of volunteers is maintained by the 

Town Clerk’s Office and interested persons should contact the Town Clerk’s Office for further 

information. 

 

C. Call to the Public – Mayor 

A.R.S. 38-431.01 states the Public Body may make an open call to the public during a public 

meeting, subject to reasonable time, place and manner restrictions, to allow individuals to 

address the public body on any issue within the jurisdiction of the Public Body.  At the conclusion 

of an open call to the public, individual members of the Public Body may respond to criticism 

made by those who have addressed the Public Body, may ask staff to review a matter or may 

ask that a matter be put on a future agenda. However, members of the Public Body shall not 

discuss or take legal action on matters raised during an open call to the public unless the matters 

are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 

 

    

MEETING MINUTES OF THE  

HUACHUCA CITY TOWN COUNCIL  

June 13, 2024 AT 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

500 N. GONZALES BLVD.  

HUACHUCA CITY, AZ 85616 

 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 2 of 6 

D. Consent Agenda - Mayor 

 

All items listed in the Consent Agenda are considered routine matters and will be enacted by 

one motion of the Council. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Member 

of the Town Council requests that an item or items be removed for discussion. Council Members 

may ask questions without removal of the item from the Consent Agenda. Items removed from 

the Consent Agenda are considered in their normal sequence as listed on the agenda, unless 

called out of sequence. 

 

C.1 Consider approval of the Minutes of the Regular Council meeting, Work Session 

and Public Hearing held on June 13, 2024. 

C.2 Consider approval of the Payment Approval Report. 

C.3 Consider approval of the disposal of a 1995 Geo Prizm VIN 1Y1SK528XSZ016705 

through Public Surplus. 
 

Motion: Approval of the items on the Consent Agenda, Action: Open for Discussion and/or 

Action, moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Motion: Approval of the items on the Consent Agenda, Action: Approve, moved by Johann 

Wallace, Seconded by Debra Trate. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

     

E. Unfinished Business before the Council – Mayor 

 

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

mayor at any time. 

 

E.   New Business Before Council - Mayor 

 

Public comment will be taken at the beginning of each agenda item, after the subject has 

been announced by the Mayor and explained by staff. Any citizen, who wishes, may speak one 

time for five minutes on each agenda item before or after Council discussion. Questions from 

Council Members, however, may be directed to staff or a member of the public through the 

Mayor at any time.  

 

E.1 Discussion and/or Action [Spencer Forsberg]: Mr. Forsberg will present the Town’s 

financials for the month of April. 

 

Motion: Item E.1, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Mr. Forsberg presents the financials for the month of April. There was a payment for fire services 

that hit this month.  

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 3 of 6 

 

 

 E.2 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: Presentation of plans for the Town’s 4th of 

July Celebration. 

 

Motion: Item E.2, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Manager Harvey updates on the plans for the 4th of July and shows everyone the new signs 

and banner that were made. 

 

E.3 Discussion and/or Action [Corporal Arnett]: Approval of the road closures for the Town’s 

4th of July Celebration. 

 

Motion: Item E.3, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Mayor Wallace asks that as we are looking at Ordinances, unless there is some sort of statutory 

law that says otherwise, we should look at taking out the requirement for the Police 

Department to get road closures approved by Council. He states that if the Police need to 

close roads for events they should have the authority to do so without Council approval. 

 

Motion: road closures for the Town’s 4th of July celebration Action: Approve, moved by Johann 

Wallace, Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

E.4 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: RESOLUTION NO. 2024-05 - A RESOLUTION 

OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, ADOPTING A PUBLIC SAFETY 

PERSONNEL RETIREMENT SYSTEM [“PSPRS”] FUNDING POLICY.  

 

Motion: Item E.4, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Manager Harvey advises that we have to do this every year and we are going to continue to 

do the same as we have been. 

 

Motion: Resolution 2024-05 Action: Approve, moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy 

Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

E.5 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: Approval of an updated contract with 

Benavidez Law Group, P.C., for continuation of attorney services for the Town, on an at-will and 

as-needed basis. 

 

Motion: Item E.5, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 4 of 6 

Manager Harvey advises that the fees have not been updated since 2014 and costs have 

gone up exponentially since then. She also advises that this removes the portion of the 

contract where the firm provides prosecution services since we have a separate contract for 

those services. She believes we should approve this. 

Mayor Wallace states we should absolutely approve this. Mr. Benavidez serves the Town well 

and knows the Town and its needs. 

 

Motion: Updated contract with Benavidez Law Group, P.C. Action: Approve, moved by Johann 

Wallace, Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

E.6 Discussion and/or Action [Manager Harvey]: RESOLUTION NO. 2024-07 - A RESOLUTION 

OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, PROPOSING AN EXTENSION 

OF THE ALTERNATIVE EXPENDITURE LIMITATION [“HOME RULE”] FROM 2020 TO BE PRESENTED TO 

THE VOTERS AT THE GENERAL ELECTION ON NOVEMBER 5, 2024. 

 

Motion: Item E.6, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Motion: Resolution 2024-07 Action: Approve, moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy 

Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

E.7 Discussion and/or Action [Manager Harvey]: Approval of amendments to the Town’s 

current budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024, ending June 30, 2024. 

 

Motion: Item E.7, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Ruben Villa advises that this is a normal procedure at the end of a fiscal year. It adjusts funds 

from unexpended lines to over expended lines and makes the budgeting process for the 

following fiscal year easier. All proposed changes were provided in the packet. 

 

Motion: Amendments to the Town’s current budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Action: Approve, 

moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

E.8 Discussion and/or Action [Suzanne Harvey]: Approval of a tentative budget for fiscal 

year 2024-2025. All anticipated revenues and expenditures may be discussed, including 

property and sales taxes, enterprise funds, water, sewer and solid waste revenues and 

expenditures, potential grant revenue, capital improvements and expenditures, personnel 

salaries and benefits, Highway User Revenue Funds, police and fire services, and carryover 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 5 of 6 

funds from the current budget.  The budget adoption process and schedule may also be 

discussed and acted upon.  

 

Motion: Item E.8, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Ruben Villa advises that the changes discussed in the Work Session were made. A few 

additional changes were made and provided for review in the packet.  

 

Motion: Tentative budget for fiscal year 2024-2025 Action: Approve, moved by Johann 

Wallace, Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

E.9  Discussion and or Action [Attorney Benavidez] - Approval of a national opioid claims 

settlement with Kroger Company [operating in Arizona as Fry’s and Smith’s] for claims arising 

out of Kroger’s role in distribution of dangerous and addictive opioid prescription medications 

[In re National Prescription Opiate Litigation, MDL No. 2804].  If a sufficient number of Arizona’s 

local governments approve the settlement, those approving local governments will receive 

their proportionate shares of the settlement proceeds as established in the previously 

approved, “One Arizona” opioid settlement distribution plan.  The national settlement amount 

is estimated to be 1.2 billion dollars, paid out over the next 11 years, to be used for opioid crisis 

impact abatement efforts.  

 

Motion: Item E.9, Action: Open for Discussion and/or Action, moved by Johann Wallace, 

Seconded by Christy Hirshberg. 

 

Mr. Benavidez advises Council to approve this. There is no reason not to. It will probably not 

benefit the Town much, but it won’t hurt the Town at all. 

 

Motion: A national opioid claims settlement with Kroger Company Action: Approve, moved by 

Johann Wallace, Seconded by Debra Trate. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

 

F. Reports of Current Events by Council 

 

Councilmember Butterworth – MPO meeting yesterday. Suzanne will be attending the Rural 

Transportation Summit in Prescott. The Paving of 90 is supposed to start in October and they 

are supposed to start in Sierra Vista. July 11th they will be onsite for a project review of Skyline. 

Food distribution was Friday and it is really sad how many people are showing up in need of 

food. 

Mayor Wallace- Will be at the Hispanic Chamber Mixer on the 19th. Looking forward to the 4th 

of July. Love the retro signage. Earlier this week met with Jason Bowing to talk all things SSVEC. 

Today was their annual meeting in Willcox. It’s change of command season so up on base 

there will be some change of commands. Got to meet the new Garrison Commander. 

Councilmember Ferro- No report 

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


500 N. Gonzales Blvd, Huachuca City, AZ 85616 | Office: 520-456-1354|Fax: 520-456-2230|TTY: 520-456-1353 

Website: https://www.huachucacityaz.gov | Facebook: https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ       Page: 6 of 6 

Councilmember Cardella- Looking forward to bringing the kids out for the 4th of July. 

Councilmember Trate- No report 

Mayor Pro Tem Hirshberg- Excited for the 4th of July. Love the new signs. On the 19th is the 

Hispanic Chamber of Commerce thing. 

 

G.  Adjournment 

 

Motion: To Adjourn, Action: Adjourn, Moved by Johann Wallace, Seconded by Jeffrey Ferro. 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

Approved by Mayor Johann R. Wallace on July 11, 2024. 

 

        ____________________________________ 

        Mr. Johann R. Wallace 

Mayor 

   

 

 

Attest: _________________________________________ 

 Ms. Brandye Thorpe, 

 Town Clerk 

 

 

 

Seal: 

 

 

 

 

Certification 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the Minutes of the Meeting for 

the Huachuca City Town Council held on June 27, 2024. I further certify that the meeting was 

duly called and a quorum was present. 

 

 

 

        ____________________________________ 

        Ms. Brandye Thorpe, 

        Town Clerk 

  

https://fb.me/HuachucaCityAZ


TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     1

Report dates: 6/26/2024-7/31/2024 Jul 10, 2024  11:08AM

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

Arizona Business Equipment

10455 Arizona Business Equipment AR38210 Copy Machine Usage/Town Hall 07/01/2024 353.90 .00 10-43-705

10455 Arizona Business Equipment AR38210 Copy Machine Usage/Police Dept 07/01/2024 112.18 .00 10-51-705

10455 Arizona Business Equipment AR38210 Copy Machine Usage/Library 07/01/2024 51.09 .00 10-62-705

          Total Arizona Business Equipment: 517.17 .00

AZ Department of Corrections Labor

1315 AZ Department of Corrections Lab D084677 2024 Labor PD 07/01/2024 1.50 .00 10-51-366

1315 AZ Department of Corrections Lab D084677 2024 Labor PW 07/01/2024 4.50 .00 10-57-366

1315 AZ Department of Corrections Lab D084677 2024 Labor LB 07/01/2024 15.00 .00 10-62-366

1315 AZ Department of Corrections Lab D084677 2024 Labor Water 07/01/2024 20.25 .00 51-40-366

1315 AZ Department of Corrections Lab D084677 2024 Labor Sewer 07/01/2024 20.25 .00 52-40-366

1315 AZ Department of Corrections Lab D084677 2024 Labor AD 07/01/2024 13.50 .00 52-40-366

1315 AZ Department of Corrections Lab D084677 2024 Labor LF 07/01/2024 30.00 .00 55-40-366

          Total AZ Department of Corrections Labor: 105.00 .00

Caselle, Inc

1745 Caselle, Inc 133840 Contract Support and Maintenanc 07/01/2024 1,018.00 .00 10-43-480

          Total Caselle, Inc: 1,018.00 .00

Cintas Corporation No. 445

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4197378785 Uniforms- PW 07/01/2024 8.92 8.92 10-57-110

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4198068281 Uniforms- PW 07/08/2024 8.92 8.92 10-57-110

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4197378785 Uniforms- Road User 07/01/2024 26.76 26.76 23-40-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4198068281 Uniforms- Road User 07/08/2024 26.76 26.76 23-40-410

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4197378785 Uniforms- Water 07/01/2024 26.77 26.77 51-40-110

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4198068281 Uniforms- Water 07/08/2024 26.77 26.77 51-40-110

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4197378785 Uniforms- Sewer 07/01/2024 26.77 26.77 52-40-110

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4198068281 Uniforms- Sewer 07/08/2024 26.77 26.77 52-40-110

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4197378649 Uniforms- LF 07/01/2024 38.05 38.05 55-40-110

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4197378779 Uniforms- LF 07/01/2024 119.58 119.58 55-40-110

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4197378785 Uniforms- LF 07/01/2024 24.70 24.70 55-40-110

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4198068161 Uniforms- LF 07/08/2024 38.05 38.05 55-40-110

10067 Cintas Corporation No. 445 4198068281 Uniforms- LF 07/08/2024 24.70 24.70 55-40-110

          Total Cintas Corporation No. 445: 423.52 423.52

City of Sierra Vista

1702 City of Sierra Vista 4918 SEACOM Payment 06/27/2024 20,487.50 .00 10-51-222

1702 City of Sierra Vista 4922 Back passenger tire repair PD3 06/27/2024 60.95 .00 10-51-470

          Total City of Sierra Vista: 20,548.45 .00

COX Business

10695 COX Business 8301 070124 Internet Town Hall 07/01/2024 2,000.00 2,000.00 10-48-481

10695 COX Business 071024 Library Internet-Erate 07/01/2024 200.00 200.00 10-62-481

          Total COX Business: 2,200.00 2,200.00



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     2

Report dates: 6/26/2024-7/31/2024 Jul 10, 2024  11:08AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

Elite Sales and Service, LLC

2130 Elite Sales and Service, LLC INV-45624. D8 No start 06/21/2024 270.04 .00 55-40-610

          Total Elite Sales and Service, LLC: 270.04 .00

Empire Southwest, LLC

2220 Empire Southwest, LLC EMWK371395 816K Packer is Offline for Transmi 06/27/2024 1,449.00 .00 55-40-610

2220 Empire Southwest, LLC EMWK371470 816K Packer Valve Assembly-Pilot  06/28/2024 629.00 .00 55-40-610

          Total Empire Southwest, LLC: 2,078.00 .00

Eric M. Wakatani

3496 Eric M. Wakatani 07042024 Fourth of July Band 06/26/2024 500.00 500.00 10-60-530

          Total Eric M. Wakatani: 500.00 500.00

Industrial Commission of AZ

2611 Industrial Commission of AZ INV-M25-00000 FY 2023 Municipal Firefighters Ca 07/05/2024 4,029.93 .00 10-53-516

          Total Industrial Commission of AZ: 4,029.93 .00

Legend Technical Services of Arizona Inc

10774 Legend Technical Services of Ariz 2409833 Drinking Water Sample 06/27/2024 1,152.00 .00 51-40-510

          Total Legend Technical Services of Arizona Inc: 1,152.00 .00

Mac's Towing LLC

9867 Mac's Towing LLC 10339 DR#240625-07 Impound Tow blu  06/25/2024 167.60 .00 10-51-505

          Total Mac's Towing LLC: 167.60 .00

Nathan Medina

10775 Nathan Medina 062624 Sewer Refund 06/26/2024 9.70 .00 52-21350

          Total Nathan Medina: 9.70 .00

Patrick K Greene

4527 Patrick K Greene JUNE 2024 Prosecution Fees for June 2024 06/28/2024 825.00 .00 10-45-120

          Total Patrick K Greene: 825.00 .00

Quest Diagnostics

1070 Quest Diagnostics 9210591834 New Hire Drug Test 06/25/2024 74.60 .00 10-43-102

          Total Quest Diagnostics: 74.60 .00

Ruben A. Villa

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-017-070724 Consulting Services- Admin 07/07/2024 892.50 .00 10-43-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-017-070724 Consulting Services- Magistrate 07/07/2024 78.75 .00 10-45-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-017-070724 Consulting Services- Road User 07/07/2024 236.25 .00 23-40-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-017-070724 Consulting Services- Water 07/07/2024 682.50 .00 51-40-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-017-070724 Consulting Services- Sewer 07/07/2024 288.75 .00 52-40-650

4360 Ruben A. Villa H-017-070724 Consulting Services- Landfill 07/07/2024 446.25 .00 55-40-650

          Total Ruben A. Villa: 2,625.00 .00



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     3

Report dates: 6/26/2024-7/31/2024 Jul 10, 2024  11:08AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

S.S.V.E.C

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2036100-0703 Electricity- City Hall 07/03/2024 855.37 855.37 10-43-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 7449100-0703 Electricity- Sign Meter 07/03/2024 68.61 68.61 10-43-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2031200-0703 Electricity- Fire 07/03/2024 703.91 703.91 10-53-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 5668300-0703 Electricity- Pool 07/03/2024 449.94 449.94 10-58-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 1872300-0703 Electricity- Parks 07/03/2024 134.61 134.61 10-60-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2037200-0703 Electricity- Parks 07/03/2024 216.24 216.24 10-60-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2046200-0703 Electricity- Parks 07/03/2024 49.17 49.17 10-60-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 417 Electricity- Parks 07/03/2024 38.78 38.78 10-60-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2031100-07032 Electricity- Library 07/03/2024 511.15 511.15 10-62-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2031300-0703 Electricity- Senior Center 07/03/2024 243.94 243.94 10-68-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 1872200-0703 Electricity- Streetlight 07/03/2024 2,169.31 2,169.31 23-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 1861800-0703 Electricity- Water 07/03/2024 783.97 783.97 51-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2036000-0703 Electricity- Water 07/03/2024 572.94 572.94 51-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2041400-0703 Electricity- Water 07/03/2024 918.66 918.66 51-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 2070500-0703 Electricity- Water 07/03/2024 1,432.40 1,432.40 51-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 7500500-0703 Electricity- Sewer 07/03/2024 311.23 311.23 52-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 417 Electricity- Landfill 07/03/2024 63.70 63.70 55-40-340

3920 S.S.V.E.C 417 Electricity- Landfill 07/03/2024 820.41 820.41 55-40-340

          Total S.S.V.E.C: 10,344.34 10,344.34

SEAGO

3801 SEAGO FY25 Annual Dues & RTAC Membershi 07/01/2024 993.00 .00 10-42-640

          Total SEAGO: 993.00 .00

Sierra Vista Fry Fire District

10600 Sierra Vista Fry Fire District 2024-064 Station Supplies 05/23/2024 126.88 .00 10-53-450

10600 Sierra Vista Fry Fire District 2024-066 Office Chairs x4 05/23/2024 564.42 .00 10-53-450

10600 Sierra Vista Fry Fire District 2024-065 Engine Repair 05/23/2024 764.88 .00 10-53-470

10600 Sierra Vista Fry Fire District 2024-063 Station 161 laminate labor 05/23/2024 87.55 .00 10-57-500

          Total Sierra Vista Fry Fire District: 1,543.73 .00

Southwest Gas Corporation

3879 Southwest Gas Corporation 070124 Gas Utility- Fire Station 07/01/2024 188.02 188.02 10-53-340

3879 Southwest Gas Corporation 070124 Gas Utility- Community Center 07/01/2024 30.48 30.48 10-60-340

3879 Southwest Gas Corporation 070124 Gas Utility- Senior Center 07/01/2024 46.90 46.90 10-68-340

          Total Southwest Gas Corporation: 265.40 265.40

SW Building Inspection Service

4025 SW Building Inspection Service 10686 Code Enforcement/Zoning 06/28/2024 4,500.00 .00 10-54-360

4025 SW Building Inspection Service 10686 Council Meeting 06/28/2024 100.00 .00 10-54-360

          Total SW Building Inspection Service: 4,600.00 .00

Terminix Processing Center

10459 Terminix Processing Center 3753498 Pest Control- Town Hall 06/24/2024 29.00 .00 10-43-462

10459 Terminix Processing Center 3753500 Rat Bait Boxes- Town Hall 06/24/2024 10.00 .00 10-43-462

10459 Terminix Processing Center 3753498 Pest Control- Police 06/24/2024 29.00 .00 10-51-462

10459 Terminix Processing Center 3753500 Rat Bait Boxes- Police 06/24/2024 10.00 .00 10-51-462

10459 Terminix Processing Center 3753498 Pest Control- Fire 06/24/2024 29.00 .00 10-53-462

10459 Terminix Processing Center 3753500 Rat Bait Boxes- Fire 06/24/2024 10.00 .00 10-53-462

10459 Terminix Processing Center 3753498 Pest Control- Library 06/24/2024 29.00 .00 10-62-462

10459 Terminix Processing Center 3753500 Rat Bait Boxes- Library 06/24/2024 10.00 .00 10-62-462



TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY Payment Approval Report - Council  by vendor name Page:     4

Report dates: 6/26/2024-7/31/2024 Jul 10, 2024  11:08AM

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date Net Amount Paid GL Account Number

Invoice Amount

10459 Terminix Processing Center 3753498 Pest Control- Senior Center 06/24/2024 29.00 .00 10-68-462

10459 Terminix Processing Center 3753500 Rat Bait Boxes- Senior Center 06/24/2024 10.00 .00 10-68-462

          Total Terminix Processing Center: 195.00 .00

Tierra Water Management

10566 Tierra Water Management 1382 Return Check fee 07/02/2024 40.00 .00 10-43-122

          Total Tierra Water Management: 40.00 .00

TransWorld Network, Corp

9629 TransWorld Network, Corp 15845046-A12 Internet Services 06/22/2024 90.74 .00 55-40-460

          Total TransWorld Network, Corp: 90.74 .00

Turner Laboratories, Inc

4243 Turner Laboratories, Inc 23F0092. Return Check Fee 06/29/2023 45.00 .00 10-43-122

4243 Turner Laboratories, Inc 24F0248 Landfill Semi Annual 06/10/2024 2,150.00 .00 55-40-510

          Total Turner Laboratories, Inc: 2,195.00 .00

Waste Management of AZ

10207 Waste Management of AZ 0053513-1571- Trash Service 07/01/2024 12,049.78 .00 54-40-360

          Total Waste Management of AZ: 12,049.78 .00

          Grand Totals:  68,861.00 13,733.26

           Dated: ______________________________________________________

           Mayor: ______________________________________________________

  City Council: ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

City Recorder: _____________________________________________________

Report Criteria:

Detail report.

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Paid and unpaid invoices included.



Services Contract Long Form 2018 1 of 10 

 

 

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY 

 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 

*************************************** 

 

 

 This Contract, made and entered into by and between the Town of Huachuca City, an 

Arizona municipal corporation, referred to as “TOWN” in this Contract, and Perry Management 

Corporation of South Dakota, authorized to do business in Arizona, referred to as 

“CONTRACTOR” in this Contract. 

 

RECITALS:  

 

WHEREAS, TOWN is an Arizona municipal corporation, organized under and existing 

pursuant to Title 9, Arizona Revised Statutes; and 

 

WHEREAS, TOWN has entered into an Intergovernmental Support Agreement [“IGSA”] with 

the United States Army Garrison Fort Huachuca [“Army Base”] for solid waste management; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, TOWN requires those services as specified in this Contract to help Town perform 

its obligations under the IGSA; and 

 

WHEREAS, TOWN desires to engage the CONTRACTOR to perform services as specified in 

this Contract; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR represents that it is fully able and professionally and legally 

qualified to perform such services; and 

 

WHEREAS, TOWN authorized the execution of this Contract on July 11, 2024. 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 

hereinafter contained, TOWN does hereby engage the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR 

does hereby accept engagement in accordance with the conditions and terms that follow:  

 

A. SCOPE OF WORK 

 

SEE ATTACHMENT A, incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

B. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

1) Key Personnel:  



Services Contract Long Form 2018 2 of 10 

 

Principal in Charge:  ______________________, an officer of the CONTRACTOR, 

will serve as the Principal in Charge and will have the authority to commit resources 

necessary to complete the Scope of Work and will be ultimately responsible for 

satisfactory execution of all work tasks.   

 

CONTRACTOR’S Project Manager: _____________________, an officer or 

employee of the CONTRACTOR, will serve as the primary contact with the TOWN 

Project Manager, Suzanne Harvey.  The CONTRACTOR’S Project Manager’s 

responsibilities will include coordination and management of day-to-day work, 

development and production of all deliverables, reviewing and responding to TOWN 

inquiries and comments, and tracking the status of the Contract budget and schedule.   

 

2) Performance Schedule:  The CONTRACTOR may begin performing only upon receipt 

of the TOWN’S Notice to Proceed.  The work shall be completed in a timely manner and 

all deliverables shall be submitted to the TOWN Project Manager no later than the 

termination date of this Contract.    This Contract shall be executed in two five-year 

blocks -- the first to expire on June 30, 2029.  The second five-year block will be 

executed automatically unless the Army Base does not fund years 6 – 10.  The second 

five-year block will expire on June 30, 2034, at which time it may be extended upon 

mutual agreement of the parties.   Compensation is in accordance with the 10-year 

schedule, Attachment “B,” incorporated herein by reference. 

 

3) Insurance:  The CONTRACTOR shall obtain insurance as described below and keep 

such coverage in force throughout the life of the Contract.  All policies must contain an 

endorsement providing that written notice be given to TOWN at least ten (10) calendar 

days prior to termination or cancellation in coverage in any policy.  Except for 

professional liability and workers’ compensation insurance, the liability insurance 

policy(s) shall include TOWN as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out 

of the Contract.  The CONTRACTOR agrees that its insurance will be primary and that 

any insurance carried by TOWN will be excess and non-contributing.   

 

Coverage Required   Minimum Limits of Liability 

 

Workers’ Compensation  $   Statutory 

Employees Liability   $   1,000,000.00 

 

General Liability   $1,000,000.00 

   Vehicles    $1,000,000.00 

 

The CONTRACTOR must present to the TOWN Project Manager written evidence 

(Certificates of Insurance) of compliance with these insurance requirements prior to the 

start of work and shall satisfy TOWN regarding their adequacy.   

 



Services Contract Long Form 2018 3 of 10 

4) Summary Progress Reporting Requirements:  The CONTRACTOR shall prepare and 

submit summary progress reports to the TOWN Project Manager on a monthly basis or as 

otherwise requested by the TOWN Project Manager.   

 

5) Payment and Performance Bonds: [are not required]. 

 

6) Warranty:  The CONTRACTOR shall warrant all workmanship and deliverables as 

follows: for six months following the termination date. 

 

(C)  GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

1) Key Terms and Definitions: 

 

▪ TOWN’S Mailing Address:  500 N. Gonzales Blvd. Huachuca City, Arizona 

85616. The Town’s electronic mailing address is: sharvey@huachucacityaz.gov 

 

▪ Contract:  This document executed between TOWN and the CONTRACTOR. 

 

▪ CONTRACTOR’S Mailing and Electronic Mailing Addresses:  

_______________________________________________________________.  

 

▪ May:  Indicates an action that is permissible, but not mandatory.  

 

▪ TOWN Project Manager:  The TOWN officer or employee, who is responsible 

for overseeing the CONTRACTOR’S performance under this Contract.   

 

▪ Shall, Must and Will: Indicate an action that is mandatory.   

 

▪ Should:  Indicates an action that is recommended, but not mandatory.   

 

2) Termination:  TOWN, upon certification of the TOWN Project Manager, without 

prejudice to any other right or remedy of TOWN, and after giving the CONTRACTOR 

ten (10) working days written notice, may terminate this Contract with the 

CONTRACTOR.  Such termination will apply to all work, or any part thereof, for the 

following reasons:  

 

▪ The Army Base terminates or cancels the IGSA with the Town. 

▪ The CONTRACTOR is adjudged bankrupt; 

▪ The CONTRACTOR is persistently or repeatedly refusing or failing to perform in 

accordance with the requirements of the Contract; or 

The CONTRACTOR abandons the work 

3) Records and Audit:  Internal control over all financial transactions related to the 

Contract shall be in accordance with sound fiscal policies.  TOWN may, at reasonable 

times and places, audit the books and records of the CONTRACTOR, or any and all of 

the sub-contractors’ records, relating to the performance of the Contract for a period of 



Services Contract Long Form 2018 4 of 10 

not less than three (3) years after the final payment is made under the Contract.  Such 

audit shall be limited to the subject matter of this Contract and the execution of its Scope 

of Work.  

 

4) Dispute Resolution:    The parties agree to cooperate to resolve any disputes in good 

faith and as expeditiously as possible. If a dispute persists and cannot be resolved, either 

party may demand that the dispute be reduced to writing by both parties within five 

working days. In that case, each party shall provide to the other its written statement of its 

position regarding the dispute. Upon receipt of the other party’s written statement, the 

receiving party shall have three working days to provide a written response and proposed 

resolution. If the parties do not then agree on a mutually acceptable solution, the parties 

shall schedule a meeting to take place within ten working days to attempt to resolve the 

dispute in good faith. If the dispute is not resolved at this meeting, the parties may 

mutually agree to formal mediation or arbitration of the dispute. If the parties cannot 

mutually agree to either mediation or arbitration, they may proceed with litigation. Any 

form of dispute resolution shall take place in Cochise County, Arizona, using the laws of 

the State of Arizona.  

 

5) Independent Contractor:  It is clearly understood that each party will act in its 

individual capacity and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venture, or associate of 

the other.  An employee or agent of one party shall not be deemed or construed to be the 

employee or agent of the other party for any purpose whatsoever.   

 

6) Patents and Copyrights:  All services, information, computer program elements, reports 

and other deliverables which may have a potential copyright or patent value, and which 

are created under the Contract, shall be the property of TOWN and shall not be used by 

the CONTRACTOR or any other person, except with the prior written permission of 

TOWN.  

 

7) Commencement of Work:  The CONTRACTOR shall work only after receiving 

TOWN’S Notice to Proceed from the TOWN Project Manager.  The CONTRACTOR 

shall complete all work to the reasonable satisfaction of TOWN in accordance with the 

Scope of Work.   

 

8) Records and Information:  The CONTRACTOR understands that TOWN is a public 

entity subject to Arizona’s public records laws as codified in Arizona Revised Statutes 

Title 39, and as interpreted by Arizona case law.   

 

9) Certification:  By signature on the Contract, the CONTRACTOR certifies that:  

 

a. The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or anti-competitive 

practices.  

 

b. The CONTRACTOR has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any 

time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, 



Services Contract Long Form 2018 5 of 10 

special discount, trip, favor or service to a TOWN officer or employee or to any 

public servant in connection with the submitted offer.  Signing the Contract with a 

false statement in connection with this provision shall void the Contract and may 

result in TOWN exercising other remedies under the law and the Contract.  

 

10) Signing Authority: The individual signing the Contract for CONTRACTOR hereby 

certifies and warrants that he is an authorized agent for the CONTRACTOR and has the 

authority to bind the CONTRACTOR to the Contract.  

 

11) Conflict of Interest:  TOWN may cancel this Contract, pursuant to A.R.S. 38-511.   

 

No member of the Town Council, and no other officer, employee or agent of TOWN who 

exercises any function or responsibility in connection with planning and carrying out 

work or services under this Contract or any relative thereof shall have any substantial 

interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or subcontract, or to the proceeds thereof; and 

the CONTRACTOR shall take appropriate steps to assure compliance.   

 

12) Applicable Law:  The laws of the State of Arizona shall govern the Contract, and all 

suits regarding this Contract shall be brought only in Federal or State courts in the State 

of Arizona.  Venue and jurisdiction for any suit or other dispute resolution proceeding 

shall be in Cochise County, Arizona.  

 

13) Contract Terms and Conditions:  This Contract contains the entire agreement between 

TOWN and the CONTRACTOR relating to the work and services provided hereunder 

and shall prevail over any and all previous agreements, oral or written statements, 

proposals, negotiations, or purchase orders in any form.  The Recitals on the first page of 

this Contract are incorporated herein as Terms hereof.  

 

14) Contract Amendments:  The Contract shall be modified only by a written Contract 

amendment signed by TOWN, and persons duly authorized to enter into contracts on 

behalf of the CONTRACTOR.  While amendments are discouraged, they may be 

considered when TOWN adds related work to the original Scope of Work, or when 

TOWN and the CONTRACTOR agree that changes to the nature of one or more tasks are 

sufficient to warrant modification of the Scope.  Amendments are also required to extend 

the term of the Contract.  Any additional work performed by the CONTRACTOR 

without an appropriate amendment shall be at the CONTRACTOR’S sole cost.   

 

15) Assignment – Delegation:  No right or interest in the Contract shall be assigned by the 

CONTRACTOR without prior written permission of TOWN, and no delegation of any 

duty of the CONTRACTOR shall be made without the prior written permission of the 

TOWN Project Manager.  TOWN shall not unreasonably withhold approval, and shall 

notify the CONTRACTOR of TOWN’S position within thirty (30) days of receipt of 

written notice by the CONTRACTOR.   

 



Services Contract Long Form 2018 6 of 10 

16) Rights and Remedies:  No provision in this Contract shall be construed, expressly or by 

implication, as a waiver by TOWN of any existing or future right and/or remedy 

available by law in the event of any claim of default or breach of contract.  The failure of 

TOWN to insist upon the strict performance of any term or condition of the Contract, or 

to exercise, or to delay the exercise of, any right or remedy provided in the Contract or by 

law, shall not be deemed a waiver of the right of TOWN to insist upon strict performance 

of the Contract.  

 

17) Indemnification:  The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold TOWN 

harmless from any and all claims, demands, suits, actions, proceedings, loss cost, and 

damages of every kind and description, including any reasonable attorney’s fees and/or 

litigation expenses, which may be brought or made against the CONTRACTOR, TOWN, 

any of TOWN’S officers, directors and employees, or any person, regardless of who 

makes the claim, to the extent they result from the acts of the CONTRACTOR, its 

employees, agents, representatives, or subcontractors, their employees, agents or 

representatives in connection with or incidental to the performance of this Contract.  The 

CONTRACTOR’S obligations under this section shall not apply to any damages caused 

by the negligence of TOWN or its employees.  The indemnity provided in this section 

shall survive termination of this Contract.  Neither the contract amount, nor the minimum 

limits and types of insurance provided for in section B3, above, shall limit the scope and 

extent of indemnity hereunder.   

 

18) Force Majeure:  Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the 

other nor deemed in default under this Contract if and to the extent that such party’s 

performance is prevented by reason of Force Majeure.  The term “Force Majeure” means 

an occurrence that is beyond the control of the party affected and occurs without its fault 

or negligence.  Force Majeure shall not include late performance by a subcontractor 

unless the delay arises out of a Force Majeure occurrence in accordance with this Force 

Majeure term and condition.   

 

If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by Force Majeure, the 

delayed party shall promptly notify the other party in writing of such delay, and shall 

specify the cause(s) of the delay in the notice.  The notice shall be hand-delivered or 

mailed certified – return receipt, and shall make a specific reference to this section, 

thereby invoking its provisions.  The delayed party shall cause the delay to cease as soon 

as practicable and shall notify the other party in writing when it has done so.  The time of 

completion shall be extended by contract modification for a period of time equal to the 

time that results.   

 

19) Right to Assurance:  Whenever TOWN has reason to question the CONTRACTOR’S 

intent or ability to perform, TOWN may demand that the CONTRACTOR give a written 

assurance of its intent or ability to perform.  In the event that a demand is made, and no 

written assurance is given within five (5) working days, TOWN may treat this failure as 

an anticipated breach of the Contract.  

 



Services Contract Long Form 2018 7 of 10 

20) Right to Inspect:  TOWN may, at reasonable times, and at TOWN’S expense, inspect 

the place of business of the CONTRACTOR or any subcontractor, which is directly or 

indirectly involved in the performance of the Contract as awarded, or proposed to be 

awarded.  

 

21) Quality of Materials, Services and Deliverables:  All materials, services and other 

deliverables are subject to acceptance by TOWN.  Materials, services or other 

deliverables (either interim or final) failing to conform to the specifications of the 

Contract or which are deemed to be substantially deficient by the TOWN Project 

Manager, shall be returned to the CONTRACTOR for remedy.  If so returned, all costs to 

remedy the deficiencies shall be the responsibility of the CONTRACTOR.  Should the 

CONTRACTOR dispute the Project Manager’s decision regarding the quality of the 

work product at issue, the CONTRACTOR may invoke the dispute resolution process 

described in section (C)(4), above.   

 

22) Exclusive Possession:  All services, information, computer program elements, reports, 

and other deliverables created under the Contract, are the sole properties of TOWN, and 

shall not be used or released by the CONTRACTOR or any other person, except with 

prior written permission of TOWN.  

 

23) Title and Risk of Loss:  The title and risk of loss of material or service shall not pass to 

TOWN until TOWN actually accepts the material or service at the point of delivery, 

unless otherwise provided within this Contract.  

 

24) Default in One Installment to Constitute Total Breach:  The CONTRACTOR shall 

deliver conforming work or materials in each installment or lot of the Contract and may 

not substitute non-conforming work or materials.  Delivery of non-conforming work or 

materials, or default of any nature, shall, at the option of TOWN, constitute a breach of 

the Contract as a whole, subject to the parties’ rights and responsibilities provided in 

section (C)(4) regarding dispute resolution.   

 

25) Liens:  All materials, services and other deliverables supplied to TOWN under this 

Contract shall be free from all liens. 

 

26) Licenses and Compliance with Laws:  The CONTRACTOR shall maintain in current 

status all Federal, State and local licenses and permits required for the performance of the 

work hereunder and operation of the business conducted by the CONTRACTOR as 

applicable to the Contract, throughout its duration.  The CONTRACTOR and any 

subcontractors shall fully comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws in 

performing hereunder.  

 

27) Americans with Disabilities Act:  The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable 

provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101 

– 12213), and applicable Federal regulations under this Act.  

 



Services Contract Long Form 2018 8 of 10 

28) Compensation, Method and Schedule of Payment:  Contractor shall be entitled to 

compensation in accordance with the pricing provided in its proposal, see Attachment 

“B.” The method and schedule of payment is subject to the requirements and restrictions 

of TOWN.   

 

TOWN’S normal policy is to process invoices requesting payment for work done within 

forty-five (45) days, upon satisfactory delivery of products, services, and/or goods, as 

well as receipt of properly complete invoices and the necessary TOWN Project Manager 

approvals. Written progress reports shall accompany each billing and shall specify the 

percentage of Contract work completed.  Each itemized invoice must bear a written 

certification by the authorized TOWN Project Manager confirming satisfactory progress 

or completion of services for which payment is requested.   

 

Invoices for payment will be submitted by task and line item as presented in the Scope of 

Work on a monthly basis.  From time to time, additional documentation may be requested 

by TOWN.   

 

Invoices for payment will be submitted by electronic mail to the TOWN Project 

Manager, at TOWN’S electronic mailing address on page 3, above.  

 

Costs incurred by the CONTRACTOR as a result of any work performed outside the 

Scope of Work of this Contract will not be allowed for reimbursement under this 

Contract unless such changes and related costs were approved pursuant to a contract 

amendment.   

 

Payment to the CONTRACTOR in advance of the CONTRACTOR incurring costs for 

authorized work to be performed under the Scope of Work of this Contract is prohibited, 

unless TOWN makes a written determination prior to the payment that an advance 

payment is in TOWN’S best interest.  

 

29) Equipment Maintenance:  The CONTRACTOR must maintain all equipment, as 

applicable, in good working order throughout the length of the project, repairing or 

replacing any unsafe or inoperative equipment without delay.  

 

30) Safety:  The safety requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act (29 U.S.C. 

Sections 651-678) as promulgated by the Federal government, and as implemented by the 

State of Arizona, apply to all work performed under this Contract.  The CONTRACTOR 

will be solely responsible for implementing and enforcing the safety requirements of this 

Act at all times.   

 

31) Retention of Records:  The CONTRACTOR shall retain all work materials and records 

relating to the performance of the Scope of Work of the Contract for a period of not less 

than five (5) years after the final payment is made under the Contract.  

 



Services Contract Long Form 2018 9 of 10 

32) Assignment of Principals:  The CONTRACTOR shall maintain the assignment of its 

Principals as shown in section B1, above.  Prior written permission shall be obtained 

from the TOWN Project Manager for any change in these assignments.  TOWN will 

notify CONTRACTOR if TOWN changes its Project Manager.  

 

34) Compliance with Immigration Laws:  As mandated by Arizona Revised Statutes 

[“A.R.S.”] § 41-4401, TOWN is prohibited from awarding a contract to any contractor or 

subcontractor that fails to comply with A.R.S. § 23-214(A).  TOWN must also ensure 

that every contractor and subcontractor complies with federal immigration laws and 

regulations that relate to their employees and A.R.S. § 23-214(A).  Therefore, in signing 

or performing any contract (including this Contract) for TOWN, the CONTRACTOR 

fully understands that: 

 

A. It warrants that both it and any subcontractors it may use comply with all federal 

immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees and their compliance with 

A.R.S. § 23-214(A);  

 

B. A breach of the warranty described in subsection A, shall be deemed a material 

breach of the Contract that is subject to penalties up to and including termination of the 

Contract; and  

 

C. TOWN or its designee retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 

CONTRACTOR or subcontractor employee who works on the Contract to ensure that the 

CONTRACTOR or subcontractor is complying with the warranty under subsection A. 

 

35) No Discrimination:  Neither Party shall discriminate against any employee or client of 

either Party or any other individual in any way because of that person’s age, race, creed, 

color, religion, sex, genetic information, disability, familial status, political affiliation or 

national origin in the course of carrying out the duties pursuant to this Agreement. Both 

Parties shall comply with applicable provisions of Executive Order 75-5, as amended by 

Executive Order 2009-09 of the Governor of Arizona, which are incorporated into this 

Agreement by reference as if set forth in full herein, and of the Americans with 

Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and all applicable federal 

regulations under the Act, including 28 CFR Parts 35 and 36, as well as the Genetic 

Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008. 

 

36) Compliance with Applicable Laws:  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable 

laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations, including without limitation federal, state, and 

TOWN, relating to or affecting work under this Contract.  CONSULTANT shall secure 

and obtain any and all permits, licenses, and consents in connection with its performance 

of its services. 

 

37) IGSA Provisions Incorporated:  Any terms or provisions required to be included in this 

Contract, pursuant to the terms of the Town’s IGSA with the Army Base, are hereby 

incorporated by this reference. 



Services Contract Long Form 2018 10 of 10 

 

38) CONTRACTOR’S Responsibilities Upon Notice of Termination by TOWN: Upon 

receipt of a notice of termination, CONTRACTOR, subject to the parties’ rights and 

responsibilities under the dispute resolution process described in section (C)(4), above, 

unless otherwise directed by TOWN or as otherwise determined through the dispute 

resolution process, shall make a good faith effort to cancel or terminate all existing orders 

or contracts, which CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors shall have made and shall 

thereafter do only such work as may be necessary to preserve and protect work already in 

progress.   

 

39) Surviving Provisions: CONTRACTOR’S obligations under (CONTRACTOR’S 

Responsibilities upon Notice of Termination), (Exclusive Possession), (Patents and 

Copyrights), (Records and Audit), (Retention of Records), (Indemnification), and this 

Section (Surviving Provisions), and any other obligations which reasonably should 

survive, shall survive expiration or other termination of this Contract. 

 

40) No Boycott of Israel:  Pursuant to A.R.S. 35-393.01, the Town may not enter into a 

contract with an entity to acquire services, unless the contract includes a written 

certification that the entity is not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the 

contract to not engage in, a boycott of Israel.  By signing below, Contractor makes this 

certification. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Contract as of the date 

signed by the TOWN.  

 
TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY    CONTRACTOR 

 
________________________________   ________________________________ 

By: Johann Wallace      by:______________________________ 

its: Mayor       its:____________________________ 

Date: _______________________    Date: ________________________ 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:   

 

____________________________________ 

Thomas A. Benavidez 

Town Attorney 

Date: _______________________________ 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

[Scope of Work] 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

[Compensation] 



Page 1 of 2 
 

Town of Huachuca City 
The Sunset City 

500 N Gonzales Blvd • Huachuca City, Arizona 85616 

Phone: (520) 456-1354 • TDD: (520) 456-1353 • Fax: (520) 456-2230 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HUACHUCA 

CITY, ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE TOWN TO ENTER INTO AN 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 

CORRECTIONS TO PARTICIPATE IN AN INMATE LABOR PROGRAM. 

 

WHEREAS, the Arizona Department of Corrections [“ADC”] may authorize inmate 

work crews to perform acceptable tasks in any part of the State; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Huachuca City has an immediate need for inmate labor services 

to perform some of its public works activities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the ADC is able to supply an inmate labor pool to support the Town’s public 

work projects through the ADC’s Douglas facility; and 

 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. 11-952 authorizes agreements between public entities for 

cooperative actions, and Huachuca City and the ADC wish to jointly exercise their powers and 

enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement whereby ADC will allow the use of its inmate labor 

resources, pursuant to the terms of the agreement attached hereto as Exhibit AA@ and 

incorporated herein by this reference; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council have determined that approval of the 

Intergovernmental Agreement is in the best interest of Huachuca City and its residents. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of 

Huachuca City, Arizona, as follows: 

 

Section 1. The Town hereby approves the Intergovernmental Agreement, attached hereto as 

Exhibit AA.@ 

 

Section 2. The Town’s officers are hereby authorized and directed to execute said 

Intergovernmental Agreement on behalf of the Town of Huachuca City. 

 

Section 3. The Town’s officers and staff are hereby authorized to take all steps necessary 

and proper to implement said Intergovernmental Agreement and give it effect. 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, COCHISE COUNTY, ARIZONA, THIS 11th DAY OF 

July, 2024.  

  

       ________________________________ 

                                                                                 Johann Wallace, Mayor 

ATTEST:    

        

__________________________________   

Brandye Thorpe, Town Clerk    
 

Approved as to Form: 

_________________________________  

Thomas Benavidez, Town Attorney 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 

[Agreement with Arizona Department of Corrections must be attached.] 



7/8/24


















































	07-11-24 Regular Meeting Agenda ver 2.pdf
	06-27-24 Public Hearing minutes-draft.pdf
	06-27-24 Regular Session minutes-draft.pdf
	Payment approval report.pdf
	Perry Management Ft Huachuca Services 2024 Clean ver 2.pdf
	2024-08 IGA Arizona Department of Corrections.pdf
	24-128-29 Huachuca City w_ASPC-Douglas.pdf

